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  [10.46 am] 

 

SJH:   Good morning.  We understand from the communications we have 

received that, between the Council and the Crown and Transpower, a 

large degree of agreement has taken place, almost complete agreement 5 

I think.   

 

 What I think is appropriate, Ms Scott, is that you could outline the 

position you have reached for the benefit of Mr Harding, because he 

was to be cross-examined and that (ph 0.40) application has been 10 

withdrawn and he may then like to submit to us. 

 

 Then I will hear from the Crown because I don’t think we need to hear 

from Ms McLeod any longer unless there is some questions arising and 

then we will hear from you.  So it is like a closing in effect because of 15 

the position. 

 

 So if you could just outline that for the benefit of Mr Harding and the 

group he represents? 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, thank you, sir, and thank you for the indulgence just to sort 

out the last remaining matters. 

 

SJH:   No, I think we should say that we are grateful for the work and I know it 

came in late but we are understanding of Christmas and we are grateful 25 

for the work that continued obviously over the weekend. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you, sir.  Just to clarify it is section 6 of our written 

legal submissions that the remaining matter related to so they 

essentially do not apply anymore.  In terms of the - - - 30 

 

SJH:   Perhaps if you just tell them to hush a little outside, it sounds like 

someone may have done that.  A cacophony of experts. 

 

MS SCOTT:   They sound like they are having a good time, sir.   35 

 

MS DAWSON:   Because they are agreeing. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, just carry on. 

 40 

MS SCOTT:   Perhaps just some housekeeping and just to clarify the document 

that was filed with you this morning and just to avoid any confusion.   

 

SJH:   Yes. 

 45 
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MS SCOTT:   The package of documents that was provided to you in hard 

copy, that included the revised part B of the attachment to 

Mr Matheson’s evidence and so if you could just refer to that.  There 

are two changes that have been agreed between the Crown and Council 

planning witnesses this morning, the first is on page 2.   5 

 

MS DAWSON:   So this is the version that was attached to the legal 

submissions this morning? 

 

SJH:   Yes. 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, that is correct. 

 

SJH:   So page 2? 

 15 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, and this is in relation to the Council’s concern that there 

could be some confusion as to when these rules start to have effect.  So 

the revised wording that sits under 6.4.2.1.3 is, “The permitted 

activities under 6.4.2.2.1 are only permitted when all of the relevant 

standards applying to the permitted activity are operative”.  And so that 20 

would replace the underlying red type currently. 

 

SJH:   Right, you can supply us with a copy when we conclude? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, we can. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

  [10.50 am] 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   And then on page 25. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   ‘RD5’ would be renumbered ‘RD6’ with a new restricted 35 

discretionary rule No 5 that states, “Any activity listed in rule 6.4.2.2.1 

that cannot be a permitted activity due to all relevant standards not 

being operative” and the same matters for discretion that are currently 

listed in RD5 would be applicable as well.  So I can provide you with 

an updated Word document after the hearing. 40 

 

SJH:   Thank you, we are grateful. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Just before I finish and pass over. 

 45 
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SJH:   Well, I think what I would like, for the benefit of Mr Harding because 

they were not parties to what went on with the experts previously, is 

that you outline the position you have got to that the existing regime 

you are saying should extend until April 2018 and then what should 

come into place et cetera so they know exactly what they are 5 

submitting on. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, sir. 

 

SJH:   If you would be so good, thank you. 10 

 

MS SCOTT:   So, sir, what is the position that has been reached between the 

Crown and the Council is essentially a cascading set of rules and what 

it does is that it enables temporary activities to continue as permitted 

until April 2018.  It enables temporary earthquake recovery activities to 15 

seek consent as restricted discretionary activities through to 2022 and 

that includes a non-notification and no written approvals clause and 

then the agreed framework provides for temporary activities after 2022 

as non-complying. 

 20 

 Mr Nevell for the Crown provided evidence and that is focused on 

recovery and the Council hasn’t filed any evidence that disputes that so 

Mr Nevell’s evidence is accepted in respect of this hearing.  

 

 I note that the statement of expectations also includes some relevant 25 

clauses and if I can refer you to, sir, ‘F”.  And relevantly that states 

that, “The plan shall provide for a range of temporary and construction 

activities as permitted activities” recognising the temporary and 

localised nature of the effects of those activities and it is the Council’s 

submission that the position reached achieves that clause of the 30 

statement of expectations. 

 

 And also at ‘G’ it states, “Contains as appropriate transitional 

provisions for the future of temporary activities established under the 

permitted activities order after that order expires”.  So again it is 35 

Council’s submission that the position reached meets the statement of 

expectations in that respect. 

 

 The written submissions do go into more detail or essentially an 

overview of the matters and they set out - - - 40 

 

SJH:   I think you can come back to that when you close. 

 

MS SCOTT:   In the closing. 

 45 

SJH:   But I think that sufficiently, Mr Harding? 



 Page 6 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 12.01.15 

 

MR HARDING:   I have read that. 

 

SJH:   Yes, and you understand the position that has now been reached this 

morning? 5 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you, Ms Scott. 

 10 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   So we are in a rather cramped room so if you want to – previously you 

were coming to be cross-examined. 

 15 

MR HARDING:   Sure. 

 

SJH:   We – sorry? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Would you like to hear a summary from the Council’s 20 

witnesses? 

 

SJH:   I think it probably would be useful if we had that summary from that 

witness at this stage and there may be some questions from the Panel 

and then allow Mr Harding to comment once we have heard that. 25 

 

MS SCOTT:   Okay. 

 

SJH:   That would be useful, thank you, if Mr Matheson is here. 

 30 

MS SCOTT:   Okay, thank you, sir.  Ms Baker and Mr Jorgensen are also here 

so we will quickly call them, I don’t think it will take very long. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. 

 35 

MS SCOTT:   If I can call Ms Baker please. 

 

<WENDY ALICE BAKER, affirmed [10.54 am] 

 

<EXAMINATION BY MS SCOTT [10.54 am] 40 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you.  If you can confirm your full name is Wendy Alice 

Baker? 

 

MS BAKER:   Yes. 45 
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MS SCOTT:   And you have prepared a statement of evidence dated 

18 December 2014? 

 

MS BAKER:   Yes. 

 5 

  [10.55 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   And your experience is set out in paragraph 1.2 of that 

statement? 

 10 

MS BAKER:   It is. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Do you have any corrections to make? 

 

MS BAKER:   I just would like to make a correction to paragraph 4.2 on page 15 

five of my evidence.  In the third line it should say ‘inconsistent’ rather 

than ‘consistent’. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you.  And with that correction, can you confirm that your 

evidence is true and correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 20 

 

MS BAKER:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you.  If you could just provide a very brief summary of 

your evidence, and then answer any questions that the Panel might 25 

have? 

 

MS BAKER:   Certainly.  I prepared this evidence in response to mediation in 

regards to three rules which consensus was reached on.  I am a resource 

consents planner, so I have focussed on that, and the rules are 30 

“Compliance with height and recession plain standards for temporary 

activities, the permitted hours of operation for office activities for 

temporary activities within certain zone and the permitted timeframe 

and height of temporary lifting of buildings”. 

 35 

 In summary, my evidence has two parts – one is that certain activities 

within these temporary rules would be permitted as permanent 

activities in any event, therefore, seeking a resource consent for those 

as temporary activities would be somewhat a waste of time and would 

be totally inconsistent with the statement of expectations, which is to 40 

reduce the number of resource consents as they would definitely, or 

almost certainly be granted. 

 

 The remainder of the portions of these rules which deal with aspects 

which would not be permitted as permanent activities which are 45 

predominantly the height and the lifting of buildings, are matters which 
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as temporary activities, in my view, are appropriate in earthquake 

recovery circumstances and align with the statement of expectation – 

point “e” – to provide for a wide range of temporary and construction 

activities as permitted, recognising the temporary and localised nature 

of those activities. 5 

 

 So, that is it. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  In fairness, because the position has changed, there was no 

application by your group, Mr Harding, to cross-examine, but if you 10 

did have questions, I will allow you to put them. 

 

MR HARDING:   I appreciate that, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Do you have any questions? 15 

 

MR HARDING:   No. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Huria? 

 20 

MS HURIA:   Good morning.  In relation to the temporary lifting and moving 

of the earthquake damaged buildings, is it your opinion that 12 weeks 

is long enough? 

 

MS BAKER:   Let me just check which – yes, okay, we have granted a number 25 

of consents so far and most of them have had the eight weeks limit in 

them and it has been shown that that is not quite long enough, but we 

have had no applications beyond 12 weeks.  So, based on that, I would 

say yes, that is long enough. 

 30 

SJH:   Okay, thank you, and I think Ms Dawson just needs to put something on 

the record for us, there is no conflict involved, but just for the record. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, so thank you, Ms Baker I do not have any questions for 

you. 35 

 

SJH:   So you may stand down. 

 

<THE WITNESS WITHDREW [10.58 am] 

 40 

MS DAWSON:   I just want to put on the record that my own house needs to 

be temporarily lifted while the foundations are being repaired, so at 

some stage I may or may not meet the requirements. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you, Ms Scott. 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Thank you, I call Mr Jorgensen. 

 

<CRAIG JORGENSEN, sworn [10.59 am] 

 

SJH:   Just take a seat, please. 5 

 

<EXAMINATION BY MS SCOTT [10.59 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Good morning, can you confirm that your full name is Craig 

Jorgensen? 10 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   Yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   That you prepared a statement of evidence, dated 18 December 

2014? 15 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   Yes, that is correct. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Do you have any corrections to make to that evidence? 

 20 

MR JORGENSEN:   No. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Do you confirm in paragraph 1.2 and 1.3 is set out your 

qualifications and experience? 

 25 

MR JORGENSEN:   That is correct. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Can you just confirm that this evidence is true and correct to the 

best of your knowledge and belief? 

 30 

MR JORGENSEN:   Yes, I confirm that. 

 

MS SCOTT:   If you could just provide a brief summary to the Panel and 

answer any questions they may have. 

 35 

MR JORGENSEN:   Thank you.  Okay, my evidence is reasonably brief and, 

therefore, my summary will be as well. It is essentially factual and does 

three things. 

 

  [11.00 am] 40 

 

 It sets out the Council process for identifying and recording complaints 

received; it outlines the types of temporary accommodation permits 

allowed under the permitted activities order in Council; and it also 

outlines the complaints received by the Council and identifies issues 45 

that have resulted from temporary earthquake activities.  These include 
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hours of operation, dust and sediment, heavy vehicles, noise, non-

consented use, signage and shared driveways. 

 

 The majority of sites issued with temporary accommodation permits 

have not generated public complaint.  Complaints that have been 5 

received relate largely to the placement of construction and storage 

depots in close proximity to residential living zones. 

 

 Complaints relate largely to the use of heavy vehicles generating noise, 

dust and sediment, and the fact that these facilities are used to store 10 

material such as road construction materials that create dust when 

unloaded, loaded and stored.  In general the activity undertaken at these 

sites is conducive to creating a noisy, dusty environment.   

 

 Complaints relating to other temporary accommodation permits, other 15 

than construction and storage, are less prevalent and have covered 

matters such as business signage, obstruction of driveways, storm 

water, lighting and non-consented building work.   

 

 My evidence contains examples of complaints that have occurred based 20 

on information provided by the compliance team as to which temporary 

accommodation permits have created the most complaints, and this is a 

high level summary of evidence. 

 

 If anyone has any further questions, happy to answer those. 25 

 

SJH:   Mr Harding? 

 

MR HARDING:   No, I accept everything you have said, thank you very much. 

 30 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Dawson? 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you, Mr Jorgensen.  Just one question from me to get a 

feeling for, I suppose, the scale and severity of complaints compared 

with what the Council would normally receive in a non-earthquake 35 

environment, about activities going on generally.  I mean, is this level 

of complaint something that causes the Council and you concern, or are 

they things that can be managed in the normal course of events? 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   I think the majority can be managed in the normal course 40 

of events.  In the greater scheme of things, temporary accommodation 

permits do not stand out as being a significant issue, however, as I 

outlined in my summary, there are specific sites that have created 

obvious concern amongst local residents, and those are those sites 

where there is a construction or a storage depot close to housing. 45 
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MS DAWSON:   Given that there are standards on the temporary 

accommodation permits, which will be replicated in similar permitted 

activity standards, I mean are these the sorts of complaint things that 

can be sorted out by ensuring the standards are met or are they over and 

above that sort of integral part of the activity regardless of standards?   5 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   I think for the most part, yes, but I think there are specific 

sites where perhaps the nature of the activity is going to cause issues 

regardless. 

 10 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you very much. 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   Thank you.   

 

SJH:   You are also involved in general complaints received by the Council? 15 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Given the numbers you mentioned about temporary activity complaints, 

how do they compare with other types of complaints? 20 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   I think they are very much in the minority. 

 

SJH:   So they are smaller than you get from other activities? 

 25 

MR JORGENSEN:   Absolutely, yes.  Our team deals with complaints across 

the whole spectrum in terms of what the Council activities are and 

temporary accommodation permits do not stand out as being a 

significant issue. 

 30 

SJH:   Okay.  Thank you, you may stand down. 

 

MR JORGENSEN:   Thank you. 

 

<THE WITNESS WITHDREW [11.04 am] 35 

 

MS SCOTT:   If I can call Mr Matheson, please? 

 

<ALAN ROSS MATHESON, affirmed [11.05 am] 

 40 

SJH:   Just take a seat please, Mr Matheson.  Yes, thank you, Ms Scott. 

 

<EXAMINATION BY MS SCOTT [11.05 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   Do you confirm your full name is Alan Ross Matheson? 45 
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MR MATHESON:   Yes, it is. 

 

MS SCOTT:   You have prepared a statement of evidence dated 18 December 

2014 and a rebuttal statement of evidence dated 9 January 2015? 

 5 

MR MATHESON:   I have, yes. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Do you have any corrections to make? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, I do have corrections to my evidence-in-chief.  10 

Firstly, at paragraph 6.3 on page 7, in the third line it should read 

“Council introduced by way of public notice on 9 April 2011 

standards”, that temporary word ‘standard’ had been left off.   

 

MS SCOTT:   That is the second line there in paragraph 6.3? 15 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 20 

MR MATHESON:   On page 14 of my evidence-in-chief, the first paragraph, 

ninth line, it starts with 3.4.1.4 “is still to be resolved”, the word ‘to’ is 

missing.   

 

 On page 29 under paragraph 10.4, second line, the reference should be 25 

to paragraph E(2) not E(1). 

 

 On page 32, paragraph 10.13, the reference in there should be to 

paragraph 10.12 above, not 9.11. 

 30 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Mr Matheson, just in respect of your attachment to your rebuttal 

evidence? 

 35 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, I do not think I had any corrections. 

 

MS SCOTT:   It was just the amended version, which was lodged this morning. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, so the amended attachment A in relation to the 40 

objectives and policies.  Sorry, I was going to cover that later. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Subject to those corrections, Mr Matheson, can you confirm that 

your evidence is true and correct to the best of your knowledge? 

 45 

MR MATHESON:   I do. 
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MS SCOTT:   Thank you.  If you could just now provide a brief summary. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Thank you, sir. 

 5 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR MATHESON:   As you can see this has been a bit of a moving position 

from where Council originally started off.  The Council’s original 

position was that temporary activity, recovery activities would just be 10 

dealt with in the strategic directions which you have heard, of course, 

in the last week or two, and that policy in there would be used to assess 

resource consent applications for activities seeking to remain for a 

longer time.  That was really Council’s position at that time, was to 

firmly encourage relocation of temporary activities to the appropriate 15 

location. 

 

 The Council then had the benefit of the Minister’s comments, and 

particularly paragraphs 55 to 63, in recommendation 14 of the 

Minister’s comments, which lead the Council staff to recommend that 20 

we do include the provisions that you see now in stage 1 of the district 

plan rather than stage 2, basically so that there was a better 

understanding and it would be known sooner for people seeking 

temporary activities. 

 25 

 As you have recorded there, the mediation dealt with a number of 

standards which got agreed to, there was natural grid, height and 

recession plains, water supply, timeframe and height for temporary 

lifting, hours of operation, a number of things; those are covered in 

section 8 of my evidence-in-chief. 30 

 

 There was also agreement on the wording of the policy in the 

residential chapter 14, and that is at paragraph 10.1 of my evidence-in-

chief. 

 There was also agreement on approved and consented activities to 35 

remain to 2018, which is in paragraph 7.24 to 7.31 of my evidence-in-

chief, and is included in the attachment as page 3. 

 

 There was also agreement on the alignment of rules between four or 

more residential units and workers temporary accommodation, and that 40 

is set out in my evidence-in-chief starting at paragraph 10.6.   

 

 There was disagreement on the restricted discretionary matters of 

discretion, and that is in relation to 14.9.23 of that chapter, but the 

Crown now confirms that it is not challenging those. 45 
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 The main thing remaining was the disagreement on the policy in 

relation to timeframe and activity status for temporary activities, and 

that really relates back to the different emphasis the Council and the 

Crown see in getting back to the new normal, as I set it out in my 

evidence. 5 

 

  [11.10 am] 

 

 Subsequently and yes, thank you for appreciating just the timeframe of 

getting things done before Christmas.  We did not have time to really 10 

get down and discuss where we needed to be, so I appreciate the efforts 

from, particularly Ms White on behalf of the Crown and assisting and 

getting to the position and that carried on through this morning as well.  

 

 I now consider that the framework that we have agreed on, as was 15 

outlined by Ms Scott, reflects the different situations various temporary 

activities are in terms of relocation to anticipated areas.  It also 

provides a good balance between encouraging relocation into those 

areas as soon as possible, but not in a manner that does not 

accommodate those specific situations which are always going to arise. 20 

 

 I agree with the change to rule 4, 6.4.2.1.3. that was set out by Ms Scott 

in her opening legal submissions. 

 

 I also just confirm there, my agreement with the evidence from 25 

Ms McLeod and the recommended deletion of the Orion’s transmission 

lines from the rule relating to setback from the national grid. 

 

 So thank you, sir. 

 30 

SJH Thank you.  Ms Dawson? 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you.  Sorry, it will take me a minute, I had a whole lot 

of questions, man of which have now been resolved.  Thank you.  I just 

want to make sure that a couple of my understandings are – I am still 35 

unclear about a few things. 

 

 Notification is one thing I want to make sure I am clear about, what the 

reposition is on, I suppose, the non-notification, those aspects which 

are now agreed to be non-notified - - - 40 

 

MR MATHESON:   Mm’hm. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So as I understand it, the rules extending – the restrictive 

discretionary activity between 2018 and 2022 - - - 45 
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MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - are the sixth now I think - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 5 

 

MS DAWSON:   As recommended or as agreed, to have a non-notification 

clause attached to that? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 10 

 

MS DAWSON:   But RD4 which is the agreed rule for those activities which 

prior to 2018 do not meet these standards, that has not gotten a non-

notification clause agreed to be included? 

 15 

MR MATHESON:   Correct. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And the new RD5, can you just explain to me what that latest 

rule is about – I wrote it down somewhere. 

 20 

MR MATHESON:   Right.  Perhaps we will just use perhaps permitted activity 

two, as it is now, and I will just refer to the attachment to Ms Scott’s 

legal submissions this morning just as an example. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes. 25 

 

MR MATHESON:   So that starts at page 3 of that attachment to A. 

 

 In there, there is a number of activity specific standards and when you 

go through those you will see that a lot of them, particularly when we 30 

get a little bit later in the – when we get down say to on page 7 

standards L and M which are just examples, Control of Glare and 

Hazardous Substances.   

 

 Those are matters that will come through in stage two of the plan 35 

process so we have got quite a mixture here of different times in which 

the Panel will be making decisions, you know, obviously the residential 

chapter is coming, there is a programme for that, but we are going to 

have a situation where different rules will come into effect at different 

times. 40 

 

 What we were seeking to achieve here was for some activities, there 

could be the option for them as a restricted discretionary activity 

knowing that they were going to be there till after 2018, so rather than 

going through a two-step process of establishing the permitted activity 45 

status, and then having to come for a resource consent for restricted to 
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stay longer, the purpose of that was to enable them to come in now as 

soon as they needed knowing that they would be wanting to stay 

longer. 

 

 So that was the intent of that change. 5 

 

MS DAWSON:   It is probably a new activity as opposed to an established one 

under the Order? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, the established under the amended P1 on page 3 if 10 

they are established under the Order, then you are established anyway 

and you just carry on, and if you want to stay longer, then you would 

use that restricted discretionary activity which is RD6 now to deal with 

staying there longer. 

 15 

  [11.15 am] 

 

MS DAWSON:   But if you are new rather than try and come in as a permitted 

activity, the rules may or may not be all operative yet, - - - 

 20 

MR MATHESON:   Correct. 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - so the RD5 notification could be made. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Mm.  And between Ms White and myself we were 25 

satisfied that those matters of discretion gives enough flexibility for us 

to look at those various standards.  Whether they are operative or not, 

and if they are not operative, then you would have regard to perhaps the 

operative plan provisions and use your judgement in that regard, yes.  

 30 

MS DAWSON:   And does that have a – and coming back to my first question 

about non-notification, are you recommending that the new RD5 have a 

non-notification or not? 

 

MR MATHESON:   At this stage, no, I would not recommend, yes. 35 

 

MS DAWSON:   Because it is more like RD4? 

 

MR MATHESON:   It is, yes. 

 40 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you, all right.  Thank you for that.  In your evidence, 

you talk about retailing in residential zones and I don’t think that has 

ended up being a matter for contention. 

 

 But just for my information, some of the temporary activity permits, - - 45 

- 
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MR MATHESON:   Mm’hm.   

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - that have been approved or whatever word you use for 

them, some of those will be retailing in residential zone? 5 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So they will continue under their TAPs? 

 10 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   As permitted activities until 2018, - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 15 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - but they are not rolled over – yes, so they would then 

come in as a restricted discretionary in the normal course of events? 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct, yes. 20 

 

MS DAWSON:   But new retailing in residential zones is not caught up with T, 

- - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 25 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - that is the one thing that isn’t included - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct. 

 30 

MS DAWSON:   - - - in T whatever it is, three or two, and that is not a matter 

of contention between any parties, I understand? 

 

MR MATHESON:   No it is no, no, that is correct. 

 35 

MS DAWSON:   The other thing that puzzled me is this issue about four or 

more residential units in commercial zones, for example, now this is 

the residential chapter, or is it? – no it is not, it is in the temporary 

activities.  So this is temporary workers accommodation now - - - 

 40 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - where the Crown and the Council have reached 

agreement that mostly the rules are going to continue over in a fairly 

similar way?  45 
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MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Except for this addition for some additional zones in RD3 

which is four or more residential units in this group of commercial 

zones needed to be added in. 5 

 

MR MATHESON:   I think that is correct, yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   So what I was unable to understand, was how do you get less 

than four residential units in a commercial zone, like one to three, that 10 

is for workers accommodation or whatever? 

 

MR MATHESON:   When you look at RD1 on page 22 - - - 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes. 15 

 

MR MATHESON:   - - - and RD2 on page 23 - - - 

 

MS DAWSON:   Yes. 

 20 

MR MATHESON:   - - - you will see there that those provisions do not apply 

to the commercial zones at all, so there never was a provision that 

enabled them to be in the commercial, they would be just as per the 

zone. 

 25 

MS DAWSON:   Okay, all right.  So there never was - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   And they did not need to be, whereas now they do in those 

commercial zones. 

 30 

MS DAWSON:   But they have only been added in as four or more - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct. 

 

MS DAWSON:   - - - because that is all that was ever there before, so it is just 35 

a hiatus. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Correct. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right, thank you very much, and is that a problem to 40 

anybody? 

 

MR MATHESON:   As far as I am aware, no, it is not. 

 

MS DAWSON:   No, if they are going to go into those zones, there is probably 45 

a group of them? 
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MR MATHESON:   Correct, yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you.  And with the policy, the Strategic Directions 

Policy, I note that your evidence just says it is over to you to get it sort 5 

of sorted out.  Have you got any comments on the conferencing version 

of the temporary activities policy? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, I think perhaps Ms White and myself are sort of just 

raising the same particular issue. 10 

 

  [11.20 am] 

 

 You need to be careful when putting dates and things into policies 

because, as I said in my evidence, you immediately find yourself being 15 

contrary to a policy.  So that was really just, I think for both of us, our 

alert to the Panel.   

 

 I am not averse to a date being in a policy that is generally indicating 

the situation you are looking to do, it is just how you write it so you do 20 

not become contrary to that policy if you want to go beyond 2018, that 

was the concern.  

 

MS DAWSON:   So 2018 seems to be the more movable date in a way. 

 25 

MR MATHESON:   Yes. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And that although there is a cascade of activity status change 

there is a potential for the RDAs to be approved. 

 30 

MR MATHESON:   Correct. 

 

MS DAWSON:   And that 18 be extended, but now with both the Council and 

the Crown agreeing to non-complying activity status beyond 2022 that 

is a more firm date, would you agree with that, yes? 35 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is what I am saying.  Yes, and the matter in the 

policy, I was just looking here so it would be policy B(III) in my 

version, which is about the ability and/or practicality for the activity to 

be discontinued by 30 April 2018, that is already covered in the 40 

restricted discretionary activity matters for discretion so I don’t think 

we actually need the policy to assist in that regard.  And I think the 

policy, which we have already agreed, which was in Ms Scott’s 

attachment that was agreed between the Crown, I think that policy in 

relation to temporary activities gives us the policy level we need 45 

without the strategic directions one. 
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MS DAWSON:   That is the one to – is that the 14.1.1.8 one? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, so it is only in relation to 14. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   It is only in the residential zone? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, it is. 

 

MS DAWSON:   All right.  Thank you very much, that has answered my 10 

questions. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Thank you, commissioner. 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you, sir. 15 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr Harding, I am sorry, I forgot. 

 

<CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR HARDING [11.22 am] 

 20 

MR HARDING:   No, that is fine.  Look, just one question and you may well 

have answered and I probably missed out. 

 

SJH:   Just hold the microphone up so we get it in the transcript, thank you. 

 25 

MR HARDING:   Just one question and I apologise if I have missed the answer 

already but if I was to apply to utilise the temporary activity provision, 

I do not know let us say 2016/2017, is there a point at which they will 

no longer be considered or will they be considered pretty well all the 

way out to conceivably 2022? 30 

 

MR MATHESON:   The way, so in terms of the activity status when the 

activity status changes, so 2018 changes from restricted discretionary to 

non-complying.  Also what will happen is as the dates arise, so you get 

to permitted activity status disappears in 2018 so you can no longer 35 

seek to be a permitted activity, you will be going to restricted 

discretionary I think. 

 

SJH:   Anything else from - - - 

 40 

MR HARDING:   No, thank you, that is good. 

 

SJH:   I just have one question, the restricted discretions, is there any situation 

where there might be a question of remediation and whether that should 

be considered? 45 
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MR MATHESON:   I just missed the bit about remediation, sir? 

 

SJH:   Well, there may be a temporary activity that is going to have an impact 

on the land, for example, where it may be appropriate that if you extend 

it through to 2022 there is remediation at the end of it, for example? 5 

 

MR MATHESON:   At the end, yes. 

 

SJH:   Or whether there is something else that would pick that up? 

 10 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, that specific situation would not be caught by the 

matters we have got listed here, would it? 

 

SJH:   Do you believe it is a matter that should be caught?  And I think we will 

need to put the same question to Ms Whyte, of course. 15 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes.  The provisions for remediation of earthquake 

damaged land, and they will be coming through in the chapter that is on 

subdivision development and earthworks – and I am sorry I have to rely 

on my memory here – the provision there builds on from the section 27 20 

notice that the Minister issued to enable remediation of land.  The 

provisions in the plan would not seek to put a time limit on when you 

did that remediation. 

 

  [11.25 am] 25 

 

SJH:   But that is as a result of earthquake damage. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, it would be earthquake damage only. 

 30 

SJH:   I am thinking more of changes to land, for example, from the temporary 

activity? 

 

MR MATHESON:   To a more permanent, okay. 

 35 

MS DAWSON:   So like a depot or something - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   - - - cleaning up a site, something - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   Right. 40 

 

SJH:   So it is back to where it was before the temporary activity. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Activity arrived, yes. 

 45 
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SJH:   And whether there is sufficient provision there to require that at the 

moment. 

 

MR MATHESON:   A good question. 

 5 

SJH:   I mean I am quite happy to stand down for 15 minutes so you and 

Ms Whyte can discuss it to - - - 

 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, I am just quickly having a look. 

 10 

SJH:   Sorry, Ms Scott, are you - - - 

 

MS SCOTT:   Perhaps I could assist, Mr Matheson, if turn to the permitted 

activity standards. 

 15 

MR MATHESON:   Standards, that is where I was going to go. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, what page is? 

 

MS SCOTT:   It is on page 4, sir.  Mr Matheson, if you look at ‘C’ does that 20 

assist in your answer? 

 

MR MATHESON:   Thank you, Ms Scott, ‘C’ certainly sets out that new 

structures must be re-locatable and existing structures must be 

remediated to their original state or state.  Now, that certainly applies to 25 

the structure but perhaps not to the land around - - - 

 

SJH:   I suppose it is a question around the last sentence there. 

 

MR MATHESON:   And sites. 30 

 

SJH:   “All structures and sites must be left clean and tidy”, whether that is 

sufficient or whether it should be original state, but then the original 

state might be something undesirable as well. 

 35 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct and certainly - - - 

 

SJH:   Do not commit yourself just at the moment, we will take a 15 minute 

break and you can discuss it with Ms Whyte to see whether that needs 

some refining or not. 40 

 

MR MATHESON:   Refinement. 

 

MS SCOTT:   If I may, sir, I have just got one further question just to clarify an 

answer Mr Matheson gave. 45 
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SJH:   Yes, I think I know what it is. 

 

<RE-EXAMINATION BY MS SCOTT [11.27 am] 

 

MS SCOTT:   In response to the question to Mr Harding, if you could just 5 

outline again the activity statuses and when they change and the dates 

because I think your answer was just a little bit confused. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Sorry. 

 10 

SJH:   I think you had non-complying from 2018 in your answer, is that the 

point, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, it is, sir. 

 15 

MR MATHESON:   So do I need to go through that again or have we corrected 

that through that process? 

 

SJH:   Well, if you just correct it. 

 20 

MR MATHESON:   Yes, so certainly - - - 

 

SJH:   2018 is restricted discretionary and 2022 is then non-complying? 

 

MR MATHESON:   That is correct. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now, do you want that time that I have suggested or we can 

hear the submissions and come back to it? 

 

MS SCOTT:   I am happy to move on. 30 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you, Mr Matheson, you may stand down. 

 

MR MATHESON:   Thank you, sir. 

 35 

<THE WITNESS WITHDREW [11.28 am] 

 

SJH:   Mr Allen, would you like to call Ms Whyte, particularly because there is 

agreement otherwise it would not be need, but just on that one point? 

 40 

MR ALLEN:   Yes, sir, very happy to now.  I will just check with her that she 

got time to fully consider what you have raised.  Yes, well, she is 

jumping at the bit, your Honour. 

 

SJH:   Right, okay.  Never turn down a willing witness. 45 
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<MARGARET JANE WHYTE, affirmed [11.28 am] 

 

<EXAMINATION BY MR ALLEN [11.28 am] 

 

MR ALLEN:    Ms Whyte, your full name is Margaret Jane Whyte? 5 

 

MS WHYTE:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:    And you are a director of Response Planning Consultants 

Limited? 10 

 

MS WHYTE:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:    And you have prepared a brief of evidence dated 7 January 

2015 and you confirm that it is true and correct? 15 

 

MS WHYTE:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:    Ms Whyte, please briefly present a summary to the Panel.  Sir, 

would you like it just focused on the question now or - - - 20 

 

SJH:   No, Ms Whyte can give her summary as other witnesses did, but then 

specifically comment on the points and there may be other questions 

Panel members have as well. 

 25 

MR ALLEN:    Thank you. 

 

MS WHYTE:   Right, okay.  So effectively in terms of my summary I have 

outlined that the evidence of Mr Nevell identified that there were 

encouraging signs of recovery but the need for temporary recovery 30 

activities to remain in at least the short to medium term and for some 

activities and locations there may be a need for activities to remain 

longer.   

 

 And so in my statement of evidence it addressed key matters, being the 35 

length of time the replacement plan should provide for temporary 

earthquake recovery activities, the appropriate activity status for those 

activities and then how the provisions could provide a clear transition 

for temporary earthquake recovery activities, recognising that not all 

activities and not all locations will recover at the same pace. 40 

 

  [11.30 am] 

 

 Now, in this summary I simply address three matters, being the 

proposed planning framework, the relationship with the strategic 45 

directions policy and then when these provisions should take effect. 
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 So in my evidence I sought to provide a planning framework to support 

a progressive recovery and that was achieved through providing a 

cascading rule framework, which included permitted activities, 

restricted discretionary activities and non-complying activities, and in 5 

my opinion that approach is the best method to appropriately enable 

temporary earthquake recovery activities to ensure an efficient rebuild 

of the district.   

 

 It is the most appropriate way to achieve the purpose of the Resource 10 

Management Act, and it is consistent with the higher planning 

documents, the objectives and policies of the replacement plan, 

recognising that they are yet to be confirmed, and the statement of 

expectations. 

 15 

 Now effectively it has moved on since then, and Mr Matheson and I are 

agreed on all of those other provisions, so I will talk to you – if I go 

through the rest of this and then I will talk to you about the specific 

rules we talked about this morning. 

 20 

SJH:   Well, I think we only need to hear about the situation you arrived at. 

 

MS WHYTE:   Okay.  If I can just potentially then address the policies and the 

relationship with the strategic directions policy, just let me find it in my 

summary. 25 

 

 Right, so effectively both Mr Matheson and I do concur with the need 

for and suitability, for example, of policy 3.4.1.3 from the strategic 

directions, and that is a matter for the Panel’s consideration. 

 30 

 Now, I have been following the outcomes from the planner 

conferencing, both 18 and 22 December outcomes, and I note that the 

dates specified in the re-drafted policy do not currently align with the 

approach advanced in this evidence by Mr Matheson or myself. 

 35 

 Now, the conferencing statements and the comment boxes do identify 

that the dates may need to change subject to the decisions on hearing 

two, being the temporary activities, this one. 

 

 Now, in my opinion, the policy when addressing the matters subject to 40 

this hearing, would be better drafted without reference to the specific 

dates, however if dates are to be retained then I think the year and the 

temporary recovery activities policy in B(III) should refer to 2022, 

which is the date after which the activity would become a non-

complying activity. 45 
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 So turning now to the matters discussed this morning and particularly 

in relation to the new restricted discretionary activity five.  There is just 

one slight difference in what Mr Matheson presented to you with what I 

had thought we had discussed this morning, and that related to the non-

notification clause that was raised by Ms Dawson. 5 

 

 My view is, I think that new restricted discretionary activity should 

have the non-notification clause in it and then those restricted 

discretionary matters, as effectively the issues that are going to be 

arising from any of those consents are not all that different to what 10 

would occur between the restricted discretionary activities 2018 to 

2022.  So I do not see a reason why there should be a difference in the 

way those activities are processed, and I think that did reflect the 

discussion this morning with Mr Matheson.  But it is definitely my 

view; I think the non-notification clause should apply to those restricted 15 

discretionary activities, the new rule. 

 

 Turning to the next point in relation to remediation, I think that is 

something that actually should be included in the restricted 

discretionary matters as an additional matter.   20 

 

SJH:   And you think you and Mr Matheson could work out some wording - - - 

 

MS WHYTE:   I am certain we would be able to agree on some wording for 

that.   25 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Is there anything else? 

 

MS WHYTE:   No, that is all, thanks. 

 30 

MS DAWSON:   Just one thing, just in relation to this RD5, I asked 

Mr Matheson, I possibly put it to him and he agreed but, is that the 

RD5 is more aligned – is a version of RD4, but it is actually the other 

way around, isn’t it, it is a normal activity extending until 2022, but 

where the relevant standards have not become operative? 35 

 

MS WHYTE:   Yes, to me it is more aligned with old RD5, which is now 

proposed to be RD6, to me they are effectively the same, but just 

dealing with that situation where the permitted activity rules have not 

become fully operative yet. 40 

 

MS DAWSON:   And they are got the same suite of matters for discretion? 

 

MS WHYTE:   Yes. 

 45 
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MS DAWSON:   And the new RD6 is to have – or you are recommending it 

have the non-notification clause as are you suggesting the RD5 would. 

 

MS WHYTE:   Yes. 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you.   

 

SJH:   Again, Mr Harding?  Thank you, Ms Whyte.   

 

MS WHYTE:   Thank you. 10 

 

<THE WITNESS WITHDREW [11.35 am] 

 

SJH:   You may stand down.  Ms McCloud, I do not want to cut you out, but I 

take it given the situation that has been reached there is nothing you 15 

want to add? 

 

MS McCLOUD:   No, sir, unless you have questions for me, I am quite happy 

to let my evidence stand. 

 20 

SJH:   Do you have any questions? 

 

MS DAWSON:   No, thank you, that was helpful, thank you. 

 

SJH:   No, there are no questions, thank you.  Mr Harding would you like to 25 

come forward and take a seat?  We have your evidence, do you wish to 

give additional evidence or you now wish to just make a submission? 

 

MR HARDING:   Sir, I came obviously on the initial understanding that we 

would be answering questions. 30 

 

SJH:   Yes, I understand that. 

 

MR HARDING:   I was going to frame my answers based on the question we 

were asked. 35 

 

SJH:   Well, the reason I ask the question, if it is to be evidence we just need to 

swear you, that is all. 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, I will be sworn. 40 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you. 

 

<PETER HARDING, affirmed [11.36 am] 

 45 

SJH:   Yes, just go ahead and start, thank you. 



 Page 28 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 12.01.15 

 

MR HARDING:   All right.  First of all, thank you very much for indulging me 

with the opportunity, I know you did not have to and I appreciate the 

time.   

 5 

SJH:   We are grateful for you coming along. 

 

MR HARDING:   Thank you. 

 

 I accept that there is an awful lot of work been done here by a lot of 10 

people and, frankly, I am in awe of a lot of it and I have done my very 

best to do justice by reading through as much as I can.  I guess the 

wording and the compromise that has been struck between CERA and 

the Council falls in a lot of ways very much in line with what we, as a 

residents association, were hoping.   15 

 

 The issue I probably still have is with regard to the timeline and in 

terms of evidence, again as a lay person, probably just looking at the 

graphs that have been provided to us, whilst there is a lot of really good 

stuff, I still struggle to see a connection between the temporary 20 

earthquake recovery activities and the timeline suggested.  I mean there 

is an awful lot of information there, but the two are not really linked 

together except by way of graphs and charts and pie diagrams, and if I 

can just refer to some of those diagrams, if you could indulge me on 

that. 25 

 

SJH:   Now, who’s evidence are you referring to here? 

 

MR HARDING:   This is Mr Nevell’s I think. 

 30 

SJH:   Yes, thank you.  That is his second or his first statement of evidence? 

 

MR HARDING:   This is the one that just come out last week. 

 

SJH:   Yes. 35 

 

MR HARDING:   That would be right. 

 

SJH:   If you just take us to the page. 

 40 

MR HARDING:   Okay, it is page 7, and it is a pie diagram showing 

$40 billion total cost of recovery by asset type.   

 

SJH:   I think that is in the original brief, which he filed as well in relation to 

strategic direction. 45 
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MR HARDING:   Is it, sorry. 

 

SJH:   Yes, 7.1. 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, that is correct.   5 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 

MR HARDING:   Clearly it is an almost inconceivable amount of money, but I 

note that EQC estimate that $20 billion of theirs will be pretty much 10 

completely spent by 2016.  The infrastructure will be spent, again, by 

2016.  Commercial, well, there is $10 billion there, again an awful lot 

of money, government I am not sure just what the timeline is for that 

either, but I suspect that that is pretty well going to be spent by 2016 as 

well. 15 

 

 So realistically, beyond 2016 that $40 billion is going to be well and 

truly mostly spent.  And if we then proceed to another one of the 

graphs, and I am now looking at page 10, figure 4, graph identifying 

projected quarterly expenditure on public sector construction activity 20 

2014 to 2020. 

 

  [11.40 am] 

 

 I look at the bar graph there and I am seeing that in about 2017, 2018, it 25 

appears to me that the expenditure is approaching the levels pre 

earthquake and if I continue on out to 2020, it is a relatively miniscule 

amount of money.  From, arguably, 2019 onwards it is a relatively 

miniscule amount of money being spent and to be honest, we are now 

talking in terms of 2022.  This graph doesn’t even go to 2022, so 30 

whoever composed the graph, I am assuming didn’t deem it worthy of 

going to 2022.  That the expenditure had probably gone down to the 

bottom, it had plateaued at that point and that is probably where it will 

continue. 

 35 

 So as a lay person looking at that graph, I guess I am thinking why 

2022 given that things have gone down to the bottom and have kind of 

plateaued.  If somebody can explain that to me I would be very 

grateful. 

 40 

 And I guess in the context of the extension of time from 2018 to 2022, I 

don’t really see a great deal of difference in the projected quarterly 

expenditure, so I find myself wondering is the extension of time from 

2018 to 2022, is it just a case of money in the bank, let’s go out to 2022 

just to make sure and I struggle a little bit to reconcile that with – well, 45 

comments that a lot of people have made including Ms White where 



 Page 30 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 12.01.15 

she says, on page 5 of her evidence, item 4.9 is it or just item 5, just 

above item 5, “The level of adverse effect on the amenity values of the 

immediate environment taking into account the length of time the 

adverse effects will be in place, the types of mitigation available, their 

practically to implement and their effectiveness to mitigate the adverse 5 

effects.” 

 

 Yes, that has to be considered and we are all clear about that, but again, 

referring back to the graphs, it just seems to me that perhaps the 2022 

timeline might just be a little bit of an indulgence. 10 

 

SJH:   Thank you, anything else, Mr Harding? 

 

MR HARDING:   No, that is probably it, thank you. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you.  Ms Dawson? 

 

MS DAWSON:   No, I don’t, thank you very much. 

 

SJH:   Have you read Mr Nevell’s second statement of evidence? 20 

 

MR HARDING:   I think I have read all the evidence that has been provided to 

me, yes. 

 

SJH:   5.7.  “As mentioned above, in my opinion, the rebuild is likely to take 25 

another 10 years.”  

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, I have read that, sir. 

 

SJH:   And he refers to Mr (INDISTINCT 3.24) evidence, “Main recovery 30 

focus and rebuild will still equate to at least the next five to 10 years.” 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, that’s right. 

 

SJH:   Does that not answer your queries in any way? 35 

 

MR HARDING:   Ah, - - - 

 

SJH:   - - -again as an expert- - - 

 40 

MR HARDING:   Yes, I agree, I agree. 

 

SJH:   And you challenge that in an expert - - - 

 

MR HARDING:   Only in so far, sir, as the graphs have been presented to us 45 

with expenditure and they are, I presume, are accurate figures as well 
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done by an expert, and that indicates to me that their expectation of 

expenditure at that point is relatively quite low. 

 

SJH:   So your view is as the sum of money comes down, there is then no 

longer any need for - - - 5 

 

MR HARDING:   No, no, no, I would never say there was no need, I mean, sir, 

I am a Christchurch citizen and I know the level of suffering out there, 

and I am for anything that will optimise the rebuild for the people of 

Christchurch.  But if I have a concern, it is that we will be at a point in 10 

2018 to 2020 where perhaps we can start to back off some of the 

temporary activity which does cause – obviously I represent a residents 

association and as it happens, the area that I represent has a lot of 

temporary buildings, and people are very stoic, they don’t say anything, 

they are very good, we understand completely the requirement for them 15 

to be there, but I think there is a point at which perhaps it crosses over 

from being necessary to being nice to have and convenient, and all I 

ask is that the Panel, as I am sure you will, remains mindful that it is all 

very well going out to a point where we know we have got it covered, 

so to speak, rather than this should be a good compromise. 20 

 

 And I accept, we are reading material done by people far more learned 

than myself but I just found the graphs quite interesting. 

 

  [11.45 am] 25 

 

SJH:   You will have seen the – if not automatic from 2018 to 2022 - - - 

 

MR HARDING:   No, I do understand that. 

 30 

SJH:   - - - (INDISTINCT 0.31) specific matters need to be considered.  Do 

you not think that covers off your concerns? 

 

MR HARDING:   Well I guess the original timeline as proposed by the 

Council I think was 2016 to 2018, so it effectively leapt – did it leap 35 

two years or four years, I am not sure, I can’t remember. 

 

SJH:   No, but from 2018 to 2022 has been explained by the witnesses and by 

Ms Scott, there still has to be an application but it can continue as long 

as those list of matters - - - 40 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes.  

 

SJH:   - - - can be, - - - 

 45 

MR HARDING:   I understand that. 



 Page 32 

  

Christchurch Plan Independent Hearing Venue, Christchurch 12.01.15 

 

SJH:   - - -exists.  Do you think that list of matters covers off some of your 

concerns? 

 

MR HARDING:   It probably does cover off some of my concerns, yes. 5 

 

SJH:   What ones would it not cover off.  I mean if you were – just assume for 

a moment you accept that process - - - 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes. 10 

 

SJH:   - - - that way to deal with it, what would you add to that list? 

 

MR HARDING:   I guess again, as a lay person, if there could somehow be a 

snapshot taken a little closer to the date to see how things were 15 

progressing, and if there was an opportunity to bring the timeline back 

a little, perhaps that could be considered, but I guess given that the 

Council will be assessing everything on a case by case basis, they will 

probably put a weighting on any application to continue out to 2020 

based on their perceived requirement to do so. 20 

 

 So I guess I would trust the Council in that respect, yes. 

 

SJH:   Okay, thank you very much.   

 25 

<THE WITNESS WITHDREW [11.47 am] 

 

SJH:   Mr Allen, do you wish to submit? 

 

MR ALLEN:   Sir, yes, in terms of submissions - - - 30 

 

SJH:   And we have got your written document. 

 

MR ALLEN:   You have got the written document - - - 

 35 

SJH:   Has moved since then as well. 

 

MR ALLEN:   Exactly, sir, that is exactly right.  In terms of the Crown’s 

position, is the Panel comfortable in terms of jurisdiction and does it 

want those matters covered in terms of the proposed cascading rule 40 

framework, application - - - 

 

SJH:   No, no we don’t. 

 

MR ALLEN:   - - - they are covered in the written submissions and can be 45 

referred to there. 
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SJH:   Yes. 

 

MR ALLEN:   You have heard this morning from both Mr Matheson and 

Ms White about the proposed changes to the rule framework.  I do not 5 

think I can summarise those any better than the Panel has already 

heard. 

 

 I am happy to answer any questions on those matters, and therefore 

with those changes and with the proposed rule framework as my 10 

learned friend has said, there is agreement between the Council and the 

Crown as to the package before the Panel. 

 

 So a very brief summary but very happy to answer any questions. 

 15 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Allen. 

 

MR ALLEN:   Now sir, we do have Mr Nevell here.  Would the Panel like him 

called to swear his evidence or is the Panel comfortable with the 

material before and does the Panel have any questions? 20 

 

SJH:   I don’t think we need a summary, but just for the record, I think he 

should be sworn and confirm his evidence. 

 

MR ALLEN:   I call Mr Nevell. 25 

 

SJH:   And I will give Mr Hardin the opportunity to question the dates he gives 

in a second, statement of evidence and the charts if he wishes to 

exercise that opportunity. 

 30 

MR ALLEN:   Thank you, sir. 

 

MR ALLEN:   The Crown calls Mr Nevell. 

 

<PHILIP GEORGE NEVELL, affirmed [11.49 am] 35 

 

<EXAMINATION BY MS OLDS [11.50 am] 

 

MS OLDS:   Your name is Philip George Nevell? 

 40 

MR NEVELL:   Correct. 

 

MS OLDS:   And you hold the position of Manager, Strategic and Operational 

Procurement at the Canterbury Earthquake Recovery Authority? 

 45 

MR NEVELL:   Correct. 
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MS OLDS:   Mr Nevell, you have prepared a brief of evidence dated 7 January 

2015, and do you confirm it to be true and correct? 

 

MR NEVELL:   Yes, I do. 5 

 

MS OLDS:   If you could now please answer any questions from the Panel. 

 

SJH:   Mr Harding, did you wish to explore the charts or the other dates that 

were mentioned? 10 

 

<CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR HARDING [11.50 am] 

 

MR HARDING:   Thank you, Mr Nevell. The chart that I was alluding to 

earlier, figure 4, the graph identifying projected quarterly expenditure 15 

on public sector construction, I am just curious, as I say, as a lay 

person, given that we are talking now in terms of 2022 was there a 

reason that that chart did not go out towards 2022? 

 

MR NEVELL:   Yes, so I think what is important to provide, for the wider 20 

context, is that that graph in particular talks about the public sector 

expenditure and the public sector expenditure accounts for 25 percent 

of the total recovery expenditure, and the public sector expenditure is 

also designed to be catalytic for private sector investment. 

 25 

 So for example, while there is government expenditure going into the 

central city for some of the Crown’s own tenants, that is not providing 

office space for smaller commercial businesses that would be looking 

to go into the central city, and so I am trying to make this sort of 

relevant for – well, how has that affected the small to medium size 30 

business that is actually operating in a residential zone at the moment. 

 

 So, that public sector expenditure is designed to be early, it is designed 

to generate confidence for private sector investment into the central 

city, which will then provide for those smaller commercial tenants that 35 

would look to move out of a temporary workspace and into a more 

commercial workspace. 

 

MR HARDING:   And obviously that is a very hard thing for you to quantify 

on a graph, is it not?  Because that could be me turning up tomorrow 40 

saying that I want to build a building in the CBD and that is going to 

skew those figures? 

 

MR NEVELL:   That is correct. So the level of private sector investment is 

forecast at the moment, and that is the most difficult piece for us to 45 

have visibility over, so we watch very closely how the public sector 
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expenditure is having an effect on the private sector investment. I think 

a good example in the early stages is perhaps to look at the investment 

that the Crown has in its first anchor project into the Avon River, and 

the level of private sector investment which we have seen that has 

followed along that river and the confidence that is there.  So that is 5 

exactly how that should be projected.  Does that help to answer that? 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, it does. I guess the impression I am left with is that 

would be a very hard thing for you to quantify really and hence the 

reason there is no graph for it? 10 

 

MR NEVELL:   We have some modelling in that area, but it is exactly that. 

The other area where – visibility in that area is, we are continually 

working on, is actually the level of new investment coming into the city 

and the level of funds that actually, capital flight as such, where it looks 15 

to land somewhere else. 

 

 So, yes, we run some modelling on it and that is where we actually land 

on the total recovery, and the timeframes for that and why I am very 

comfortable with the two dates that the two parties have agreed on, 20 

2018 and 2022, to be appropriate at this point in time. 

 

MR HARDING:   Thank you very much. 

 

MR NEVELL:   Thank you. 25 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Mr Nevell, you may stand down. 

 

MR NEVELL:   Thank you. 

 30 

<THE WITNESS WITHDREW [11.55 am] 

 

SJH:   Yes, Ms Scott? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you, sir.  Slightly orthodox approach this morning, but I 35 

will now briefly run you through our opening legal submissions. 

 

 I think, given that- - - 

 

SJH:   Again, I think it can be brief because a lot of it has been overtaken by 40 

events. 

 

MS SCOTT:   That is absolutely correct.  I just wanted to draw your attention 

to a couple of sections if that is okay? 

 45 

SJH:   Yes, thank you, yes. 
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MS SCOTT:   Just in paragraph 1.4, sir, that is on page 3 – most of the focus 

this morning has been on the cascading rule framework and the 

additional change that was agreed this morning. 

 5 

 Just in that clause we set out some of the other matters that have been 

agreed through mediation and through the course of preparing and 

exchanging evidence.  The Council just wants to record its appreciation 

for the constructive approach that all the parties have brought to this 

hearing. 10 

 

 Then I would just like to draw your attention, please, sir, to almost a 

jump to the back actually, to section nine – there is a section there on 

Transpower’s National Grid. 

 15 

SJH:   Yes? 

 

MS SCOTT:   The Council acknowledges and accepts the set back that comes 

from the National Policy Statement and as a response of considering 

Ms McLeod’s evidence and also the scope of Orion’s further 20 

submission, you will see set out in that section that the Council has 

reverted to back to the position that was agreed at the mediation 

between the parties. 

 

 In section 10, just two very brief paragraphs about replacement of the 25 

existing District Plan.  There are no parts of the existing District Plan 

plans that need to be replaced through these rules- - -  

 

SJH:   That will be a relief to everybody given the discussions we have had to 

date about that. 30 

 

MS SCOTT:   That is right, sir, and just to, I have clarified there that the 

chapter six provisions they have essentially come across from the order 

in Council in respect of the proposal 14 rules – they are essentially 

new, so there is nothing to replace there. 35 

 

 So, sir, unless you have any specific questions, I think that is all the 

Council has to present. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 40 

 

MS DAWSON:   The only thing, the two additional changes that you told us 

about right at the beginning, that were talked about this morning, will 

you be able to provide us with this in writing at some stage? 

 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, absolutely.  Perhaps what we could do is provide a full list 

of the provisions that includes those, or would you just like the - - - 

 

SJH:   I think if we could get a new set with that, plus- - - 

 5 

MS DAWSON:   A new set, so the one- - - 

 

SJH:   The remediation, but tracked again, so we will probably have to go to a 

green or something.  We are running out of colours. 

 10 

MS DAWSON:   Yes, so the two things you mentioned this morning, plus the 

remediation added in to the hardcopy we got, and then provided 

electronically to us, that would be great. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Absolutely, and I think we can do that reasonably quickly. 15 

 

MS DAWSON:   Thank you very much, that is helpful. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, Ms Scott. 

 20 

MS SCOTT:   Thank you. 

 

SJH:   We will adjourn, but can I just reiterate, you talked about the 

cooperation of other parties with Council – we are very, very grateful, 

particularly in the timescale of Christmas and holidays and such like, 25 

there has been a lot of work gone in to what is potentially quite a 

difficult issue and we are grateful for the progress that was made and 

the outcome. 

 

 We will, as we have indicated earlier, hand down this and the other 30 

shorter matters that we have heard since Strategic Direction at the same 

time.  The only question that I would raise is that we need to get 

consistency of drafting.  So that is why we need to just wait until they 

can all come out together and, Mr Harding, I am very grateful for your 

evidence and your submissions on behalf of your resident’s association. 35 

 

MR HARDING:   Thank you, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you. 

 40 
MATTER ADJOURNED AT 11.59 AM ACCORDINGLY 


